ESKORT Designer for Clearance

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

DOCUMENT

Title:	User Guide, Section I - Introduction
Document:	icdk/Application/Designer/UserGuide/1
Date:	2010.05.05
Version:	1.0
Author:	Marco Dijkstra, Jørgen Rune Mortensen, Staffan Anderberg
Contributions by:	
Classification:	Commercial in Confidence
Distribution:	
Versions:	0.9 Converted to single source
	1.0 Changed footer to Intracom, Minor editorials
Printed:	16.05.12

Table of Contents

1.	Overview	1
1.1	Conventions	1
2.	ESKORT Designer	2
2.1	Introduction	2
2.2	Using ESKORT Designer to Edit Structured Information	2
2	.2.1 The Message Pane	3
2.3	Configuration Archive	
2	.3.1 Revisions	4
2.4	The Structure Pane	5
2	.4.1 Working with the document structure	5
2	.4.2 Locking and Unlocking	6
2	.4.3 Inserting elements	6
2	.4.4 Copying and Moving Elements	7
2	.4.5 Removing Elements	9
2	.4.6 Work Copy	9
2	.4.7 Revisions	
2	.4.8 Saving and Loading Revisions	
2	.4.9 Labels	
2	.4.10 Plug-ins	
2	.4.11 Reports	
2	.4.12 Searching	
2	.4.13 Sorting	
2	.4.14 Verify Documents	
2	.4.15 Help	16
2.5	The Editor Pane	16

~	
v	

1. Overview

This document introduces the ESKORT Designer tool, member of ESKORT Compliance Solutions.

1.1 Conventions

Definitions – The first time a specific term or concept is mentioned in a relevant subsection it is printed in italic. If required, further definition will follow shortly after the first time it is mentioned and is preceded by an icon. $\langle \Box \rangle$

Exercise – Exercises are printed in bold and are preceded by an icon. \square

[Menu] – Menu options, buttons, window and field names are printed within square brackets. The word option, button, field, dialog/window behind the word will specify the type.

2. ESKORT Designer

2.1 Introduction

The ESKORT Designer for Clearance is a configurable editor that supports editing of structured information stored in XML (Extensible Mark-up Language), which is the emerging standard for representation and communication of structured data. The XML standards are managed by the World Wide Web consortium, and supported by all major software vendors.

In the context of ESKORT Clearance, the ESKORT Designer is used to maintain the *Configuration Archive*.

^C The Configuration Archive is the XML data store that holds the configuration documents used by the ESKORT Analysis module. Some of the key document types in the Configuration Archive are Environments, Knowledge Bases, Taxpayer Lists and Tasks.

2.2 Using ESKORT Designer to Edit Structured Information

Basically, the ESKORT Designer supports editing of *Documents* representing hierarchically structured information.¹ One such example of a hierarchically structured document is a knowledge base with knowledge rules.

A document is made up of one or more *Elements*, which are used to represent the *structure* in the document. In the Knowledge Base example, the document would be made up of elements such as KnowledgeBase, KnowledgeRule, Author, etc. The types of elements in the document (KnowledgeBase, KnowledgeRule, Author) are referred to as *Element Types*. In general, an element can have subordinate elements (referred to as *Child Elements*), which again can have other subordinate elements - thus making up the structure of the document. By specifying, for each element type, the types of child elements that are valid, the structure of the document can be precisely controlled. In the Knowledge Base example, KnowledgeRule elements would be valid children of KnowledgeBase elements, and Author elements would be valid children of KnowledgeRule elements.

The *actual information* in the document is represented as *Attributes* on the elements. An attribute is data stored in the element itself, which can be referred to by its name. In the Knowledge Base example, the KnowledgeBase element would have attributes such as:

- Name name of the knowledge base
- Description description, describing the knowledge base
- Environment environment context of the knowledge base
- Etc.

The specification of valid child elements and attributes for each element type allowed in a document is referred to as a *Document Schema* (or a Document Contents Definition).

¹ Simple examples of hierarchically structured information include: a purchase order with order lines; a project plan with activities and sub-activities; an address book with address and telephone information for groups (such as companies) and persons.

Typically ESKORT Designer is configured to edit documents compliant with a specific document schema. This means that ESKORT Designer can ensure that the edited document is always valid, and - more importantly - support the user in creating a valid document.

ESKORT Designer supports editing structured information in documents. These documents are made up of elements. Elements can have child elements. Elements have attributes that contain the actual information.

The basic ESKORT Designer interface has two main panes:

- The *Structure Pane* the left part of the interface, which presents the structure of the document, and allows elements to be created, deleted or moved around.
- The *Editor Pane* the right part of the interface, which represents the attributes of the current element in the Structure Pane.

🚯 ESKORT Designer [Workspace.Main.Knowledge Bases.IRS Clearance Knowledgebase] 📃 🗖 🔀					
<u>F</u> ile Edit Help					
😂 🖬 ++ 🛒 🜌 🖓 🌆 🌆 🎥 🏦 🗅 🕑					
Workspace Environments C Knowledge Bases	Name IRS Clearance Knowledgebase				
 ► Converge Bases ► InvironmentFile ► EnvironmentFile ► Configuration 	Description This is the knowledge base that is used by the ESKORT Analysis for analysis of clearance declarations. The knowledge base handles both SAD and Manifest declarations. The differentiation between these two types of declaration is done in the rule 'DetermineAnalysisRoute'. A detailed description of SAD analysis is found in the 'Sad' area. A detailed description of Manifest analysis is found in the 'Manifest'				
19-05-2006 11:21:17 root.xml: check-out newest revision (1.010) 19-05-2006 11:21:20 base\base0001.XML: check-out newest revision (1.002)					
Messages Find Error Observation Profile Debug					

It should be noted, that the above is a little simplified. In some configurations the structure pane provides additional views on the document, and similarly, the editor pane can be configured to present information from other parts of the document - typically from the child elements of the current element.

2.2.1 The Message Pane

The ESKORT Designer also has a *Message Pane* at the bottom where messages are displayed for the user.

19-05-2006 11:21:17 root.xml: check-out newest revision (1.010)						
19-05-2006	19-05-2006 11:21:20 base/base0001.XML: check-out newest revision (1.002)					
Messages	Find	Error	Observation	Profile	Debug	

The message pane consists of five tabs:

• Message

Messages and status from the ESKORT Designer will be reported in the [Message] tab.

• Find

The results of a search will be reported in [Find] tab. Double-clicking a search result will jump to the relevant element. See also section 2.4.12.

• Error

Any discrepancies from a verify process will be reported in [Error] tab. Errors can be investigated by double-clicking them. See also section 2.4.14.

Observation

When testing rules in the ESKORT Designer any observations created by the rules will be reported in the [Observation] tab. See also section **Error! Reference source not found.**

• Debug

When testing rules in the ESKORT Designer further information will be reported in the [Debug] tab.

Note: the contents of the [Debug] tab is intended for use by experienced knowledge engineers; The details of the information will not be explained further as it is not readily useful for normal users.

2.3 Configuration Archive

The *Configuration Archive* contains the configuration documents used by ESKORT Clearance.

The key document types managed in the Configuration Archive are:

- Knowledge Bases
- Knowledge Base environments

For information of the contents of these documents refer to the other sections (II, III, IV and V) of this User Guide.

Of each document type multiple instances can be created. To illustrate, users could create multiple knowledge bases, which are instances of the same document type (Knowledge Bases).



2.3.1 Revisions

Typically, each document type instance, e.g. a knowledge base, will have multiple *revisions*. Any time a specific document is saved permanently, a new revision is being created.

Revisions are versions of the same document type instance. For instance, a specific knowledge base will typically have multiple revisions, with one revision being the current.

Revisions L	abels	
Revision	Created	
Newest		
Work copy		
1.000	09-08-2002 10:18	
1.001	04-09-2002 10:29	
1.002	04-09-2002 10:29	
1.003	30-09-2002 13:03	
1.004	30-09-2002 13:03	

2.4 The Structure Pane

The structure pane represents the structure of the document by showing the elements in an outline, where each line corresponds to an element, and child elements are shown indented relative to their parent elements. You can control whether child elements are shown or not by clicking on the plus (+) and minus (-) symbols.



The above shows an expanded Environment document (Demo Environment), showing the child elements it contains. The element is referred to as the Current Element. You can change which element is current by clicking on the element you want to be current, or by moving around with the arrow keys.

If you want to expand the entire outline, click the **++** button on the toolbar. You can collapse the outline by clicking the **--** button on the toolbar.

2.4.1 Working with the document structure

Work with the document structure is accomplished by activating the context menu on an element by right-clicking it, as illustrated in the following sample:

User Guide, Section I - Introduction



2.4.2 Locking and Unlocking

Before being able to work with a document, the document must be locked. This prohibits other users from editing the document at the same time.

🖃 🇐 Workspace	
🗄 🧰 Environm	ients
🖻 🧰 Knowledg	ge Bases
🖻 – 😚 🤍 Mr	data Knowledgebase
···· 🔶 [New Knowledge Base
±● ±	Cut
	Сору
	Delete
	Lock
	UnLock
	Release
	Report: Generic
	Report: Cross Reference
	Verify Document
	Verify Document (All)
	Publish

A locked document can be recognized by the word <LOCKED>, which appears next to the locked document. Also, a locked document is editable which implies that the fields in the Editor pane are enabled.

Instead of using the context menu you may lock a document by clicking on the icon in the toolbar.

Unlocking can be done similarly, using the context menu or the \bowtie icon in the toolbar.

2.4.3 Inserting elements

The top-most section of the context menu presents the elements that can be inserted after the current element as *child* or *sibling* elements.

A child element is an element inserted below the current (parent) element in the next level in the hierarchy. Contrary to this a sibling is an element at the same level in the hierarchy as the current element, inserted below a common (parent) element.

At a Knowledge Base element e.g. it is possible to insert an Area as a child element, or a another Knowledge Base as a sibling element. ESKORT Designer will automatically determine which elements are valid to insert as child or sibling elements. In some cases the same type of element is valid both as a child and as a sibling element. In these cases ESKORT Designer will provide a sub-menu which allows one of these alternatives to be chosen.



2.4.4 Copying and Moving Elements

The current element may be copied or cut to the Windows clipboard using the Cut and Copy items in the context menu. In both cases, the entire structure (the element and all its children) will be copied. The element is pasted by selecting the element after which the copied element should be inserted, and selecting the appropriate Paste choice in the context menu of that element. Note that one of the options will be to replace the current element by the copied element. No paste choices in the context menu indicate that the current content of the clipboard does not represent an element that can be pasted in the current element.

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

 ♥ Workspace ♥ Environments ♥ Knowledge Base ♥ Demo Know ♥ Demo Know ♥ MyFirst4 ♥ WM-data Kr 	es ledgebase <locked> rea New Area New Rule New Environment Reference New EnvironmentFile New KbIncludes New Configuration</locked>
	Cut Copy Paste as Child Paste as Sibling Paste as Replacement Delete Lock UnLock Notepad Report
Workspace Convironments Convironments Convironments Converted by Demo Knowle MySecor Converted by WM-data Know	Report (No Formalization) Verify Formalization Syntax
	New Rule New Environment Reference New EnvironmentFile New KbIncludes New Configuration Cut Copy Paste as Child Paste as Sibling Paste as Replacement Delete
	Lock UnLock Notepad Report Report (No Formalization) Verify Formalization Syntax



2.4.5 Removing Elements

The current element may be removed using the Delete item in the context menu.

🖃 🇐 Workspace				
🗄 🛅 Environments				
🗄 🛅 Knowledge Ba	ises			
🚊 🛞 Demo Kno	wledgebase <locked></locked>			
🗄 回 MySer	rondàrea			
🛨 🚫 WM-data	New Area			
-	New Rule			
	New Environment Reference			
	New EnvironmentFile			
	New KbIncludes			
	New Configuration			
	Cut			
	Сору			
	Delete			
	Lock			
	UnLock			
	Notepad			
	Report			
	Report (No Formalization)			
	Verify Formalization Syntax			

2.4.6 Work Copy

Any changes you make will be kept in a so-called *work copy* of the locked document. The work copy is maintained as long as you keep the document locked. Once you unlock the document the work copy will be discarded.

If you have made changes to the document and want to leave ESKORT Designer without unlocking the document (maybe you are not yet done with implementing all changes), then you should save the document first.

You can save your changes by using [File] | [Save]. Alternatively you can use the **b**utton on the toolbar.

If you forgot to save your changes in the work copy while exiting the ESKORT Designer, the system will prompt you whether or not you want to save.

icdk/Application/Designer/UserGuide/1/v1.0/2010.05.05

9 (19)

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

Save file	
Save changes?	
Yes No	Cancel

2.4.7 Revisions

Every document in the ESKORT Designer has one or more revisions. The document currently loaded is called the *current revision*. This current revision is not necessarily the newest revision. The newest revision is however the default revision being loaded when starting the ESKORT Designer.

The current revision of a document is the revision that is shown in the ESKORT Designer.

If the current revision is not the newest revision, then the revision number is displayed next to the document. See the illustration below:



2.4.8 Saving and Loading Revisions

You can save a document in a new revision by using the \Box^{2} button on the toolbar.

This will effectively take your work copy, store it in a new revision of the document, unlock the document and discard the work copy.

You can load a revision of a document by making the document the current element and clicking the d^{2} button on the toolbar.

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

Select obje	ct revision 🛛 🔀
Revisions [abels
Revision	Modified
Newest Work copy 1.000 1.001	20-02-2006 14:25:00 01-05-2006 19:07:02
ОК	Cancel

2.4.9 Labels

You can label revisions by clicking the button on the toolbar.

Label object revisions			\mathbf{X}
Label	Revision		
MyFirstLabel	1.001		
Label MyFirstLabel		Revision	1.001 💌
Add Delete			

In the dialog select the revision that you want to label, enter a label in the Label edit box and click the [Add] button.

You may add multiple labels to the same revision.

Once you have labeled revisions, you can load them through their label instead of their revision number.

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

Select obj	ect revisio	n 🔀
Revisions	Labels	
Label		Revision
MyFirstLabe	el	1.001
OK	Cancel	

2.4.10 Plug-ins

Some elements have been configured to support one or more plug-ins - such as a report. The plug-ins available for an element is displayed at the bottom of the context menu. $\Box = \bigcirc \bigcirc$ Workspace

🏓 Workspace		
🗄 🛅 Environm	ients	
E Knowled	ge Bases	
E S Dem	- M	
THE WAY	New Environment Reference	
	New EnvironmentFile	
	New KbIncludes	
	New Area	
	New Knowledge Base	
	Cut	
	Сору	
	Paste	
	Delete	
	Lock	
	UnLock	
	Release	
	Report: Generic	
	Report: Cross Reference	
	Verify Document	
	Verify Document (All)	
	Publish	

Appendix A lists all available plug-ins.

2.4.11 Reports

Many of the plug-ins are report tools. It allows you to create an HTML report of for examples rules in a knowledge base.

Refer to appendix A for the various report possibilities.

2.4.12 Searching

You can search in documents by making the document the current element and clicking the

button	on the toolbar.	
Find		
Find what:	ResultOutput	Find
🔲 Match ca	se	Cancel
		Advanced >>

Checking "Match Case" indicates that the search should consider uppercase and lowercase letters as distinct. To illustrate, with Match Case un-checked, a search for "rule" would find occurrences of both "rule" and "Rule"; With Match Case checked only occurrences of "rule" would be found.

You can also search in multiple documents by selecting the folder you want to search in or even the top of the tree.

,	Workspace C Environmen C Knowledge	ts Bases	
	Find		
	Find what:	Result output	Find
	🗖 Match cas	e	Cancel
			Advanced >>

Results are presented in the [Find] tab in the Message Pane.

Search for 'Result output' o	completed, 1 occurences found
Object	Text
Name	Result output
<	
Messages Find Error	r Observation Profile Debug

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

Double click the occurrence for jumping to the relevant element.

Workspace Environments Environments Oremo Knowledge WM-data Knowledge WM-data Knowledge Fromote EnvironmentFilter Knowledgeba Knowledgeba Configuration	base <1.001> Igebase <1.003> Ie	Knowledgebase Formalization
Search for 'Result Output' comple	ted, 1 occurences found	
Object	Text	
Name	Result output	

If you only want to search in specific elements, then click the [Advanced] button on the [Find] dialog, uncheck the [search in all objects] checkbox and check the elements you want to search in. See example below:

Find			
Find what: Result output	ıt	Find	
Match case		Cancel	
		Advanced <<	
🔽 Search in all objects			
Search in			
Joined Extract	<u>^</u>		
Taxpayer List Source			
Formalization			
ReasonOutput			
InvestAction			
🛛 🗖 AuditorSkill			
	× .		An example of searching could

that we are interested in finding all rules in a knowledge base that have status 'underconstruction'. To do so, make the knowledge base the current element and click the search

button on the toolbar. Type in under-construction in the search dialog:

Find		
Find what:	Risk Object	Find
🔲 Match ca	se	Cancel
		Advanced >>

In the [Search] tab in the message pane the result together with number of occurrences can be seen. The search can therefore also be used to count the number of rules that have status 'under-construction' (and of course also 'ready-for-production')

Search for 'Risk Object' completed, 14 occurences found		
Object	Text	
Description	This area encapsulates rules that look up risk object scores through param	
Formalization	Risk object rules assign values to Score and Weight.	
Formalization	Risk objects.	
Formalization	NOTICE: If risk object parameter is not defined the parameter lookup ret	
Description	Risk objects for declaration types A, B, C and D	
Description	Risk objects for declaration type E	
<		
Messages Find	Error Observation Profile Debug	

Other examples could be that we want to find the rules that use a specific function in their implementation. Or we would like to find rules that use a specific cube-member.

2.4.13 Sorting

Some element types support sorting of their child elements. When nodes are inserted or pasted, the sorting will be applied automatically. However, when an element is renamed (e.g. a cube), sorting does not take effect immediately.

The 2^{\ddagger} button in the toolbar allows sorting to be reapplied by the user. The button is active when the selected element is a child element to an element that supports sorting of its child elements.

Sorting of child elements is supported for the following element types: Parameters, Dimensions, Dimension, Cubes, Extract Definition, and Record Table.

2.4.14 Verify Documents

Certain document types (environments, knowledge bases, tasks) can be verified using one of the verification buttons e.g.

This option verifies a number of aspects of the document in questions, e.g. whether all internal references can be resolved. Any discrepancies will be reported in the [Error] tab in the Message Pane and can be investigated by double-clicking them.

Cubes Previous Documents TransportDocuments Previous Tables Previous
18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'ManifestCountryWideRandomOnNull' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'SadItemLowToMiddleThreshold' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'SadItemMiddleToHighThreshold' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'ManifestGsLowToMiddleThreshold' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'ManifestGsMiddleToHighThreshold' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Cannot verify SQL for parameter usage: 'ManifestGsMiddleToHighThreshold' due to no ODBC connection 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Error: '1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified' 18-05-2006 13:21:34 Error: '1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified' 18-05-2006 13:21:34 1:1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified' 18-05-2006 13:21:34 1:1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified' 18-05-2006 13:21:34 1:1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified' 18-05-2006 13:21:34 1:1:ALLV-W0014: WARNING: No keys for target cubes are specified'
18-05-2006 13:21:51 env\env0001.XML: check-in new revision (1.006)
Messages Find Error Observation Profile Debug

"Verify" Checks that the formalization syntax within the rule or area is correct. Please refer to Reference, Formalization Language in the online help for the complete syntax definition.

An example of the type of error reported during this verification would be the syntax errors "A = 5 5", or

"if A < 2"

The correct syntax would have been "A = 55" and "if A < 2".

"Verify Document" Checks the entire document with respect to formalization syntax, and validity of parameters and cube and member references. Only rules in the state 'Ready-for-production' are checked.

Construction with respect to formalization syntax, and validity of parameters and cube and member references. All rules in the state 'Ready-for-production' or 'Ready-for-test ' are checked.

2.4.15 Help

Context sensitive Help to the element in focus can be invoked by pressing F1.

The online help can also be opened by choosing [Contents...], [Index...], or [Find...] in the Help menu of the main menu. Choose [Contents...] and click [Getting Help] for additional information on how to use the online help.

<u>,</u> ∕Ω: E	SKOF	T Des	signer [Workspace.Mair	n.
File	Edit	Help		
2		Co	Contents	
		Index –		
		Find		
		About ESKORT Designer		
			📴 Container	

2.5 The Editor Pane

The editor pane displays information from the attributes of the current element, as illustrated in the example below, which shows the attributes of an ExtractData element.

Name	DataWarehouse
DSN	ESKORTClearance122RC
UID	eskort
Password	eskort
Datasource JNDI	ClearanceDataSource

When the document is locked, the attributes can be edited using the displayed controls (text boxes, checkboxes, combo boxes, etc.).

Appendix A: Plug-Ins

This appendix lists the plug-ins available for an element.

Environment

The plug-ins available for the Environment element are:

• Verify Document

Checks the entire environment for validation with of parameters and cube and member references.

Refer to section 2.4.14 for more information of document verification.

• Report: Generic

Creates an HTML report of the cubes, dimensions, parameters and extract definitions in the environment. The user specifies the exact content of this report.

Refer to [ESKORT Designer, Section II – Introduction to Environments] for more information about generic reports for environments and to [ESKORT Designer, Section III– Introduction to Knowledge Engineering] for more information about generic reports for knowledge bases.

KnowledgeBase

The plug-ins available for the KnowledgeBase element are:

• Report: Generic

Creates an HTML report of the areas and rules in a knowledge base. The user specifies the exact content of this report.

Refer to [ESKORT Designer, Section III – Introduction to Knowledge Engineering] for more information about generic reports for knowledge bases.

• Report: Cross Reference

Creates an HTML report of cross-reference information on the rules and use of members in the rules.

Refer to [ESKORT Designer, Section III – Introduction to Knowledge Engineering] for more information about generic reports for cross-references.

• Verify Document

Checks the entire knowledge base with respect to formalization syntax, and validity of parameters and cube and member references. Only rules in the state 'Ready-for-production' are checked.

Refer to section 2.4.14 for more information of document verification.

• Verify Document (All)

Checks the entire knowledge base with respect to formalization syntax, and validity of parameters and cube and member references. All rules in the state 'Ready-for-production' or 'Ready-for-test ' are checked.

Refer to section 2.4.14 for more information of document verification.

Area

The plug-ins available for the Area element are:

• Notepad

Creates an XML-extract of the knowledge base and shows it in notepad. The extract contains the current area together with the child areas and rules belonging to this area.

Note: The content of this XML-extract is intended for use by experienced knowledge engineers and should not be used by the normal user.

• Report

Creates an HTML report of the current area together with the child areas and rules belonging to this area.

• Report (No Formalization)

Creates an HTML report of the current area together with the child areas and rules belonging to this area. This report contains no formalization.

• Export for Test Analysis

Creates an extract knowledge base file (XML-file) containing the current area together with the child areas and rules belonging to this area.

This file can be used for testing only the rules within the current area in the Analysis Server.

Refer to [ESKORT Designer, Section V – Defining and Releasing Tasks] for more information about test analysis functionality.

Rule

The plug-ins available for the Rule element are:

• Notepad

Creates an XML-extract of the knowledge base and shows it in notepad. The extract contains the current rule.

Note: The content of this XML-extract is intended for use by experienced knowledge engineers and should not be used by the normal user.

• Rule Templates

Shows a HTML file that contains templates for typical rule formalizations. These can be copied and pasted into the rule formalization as a help when formalising the rules.

User Guide, Section I - Introduction

• Report

Creates an HTML report of the current rule.

• Report (No Formalization)

Creates an HTML report of the current rule. This report contains no formalization.

• Verify Formalization Syntax

Verifies that the formalization of the rule is syntactically correct.

Refer to section 2.4.14 for more information of verification.